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HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
. SERVING THE BOROUGHS OF ATLANTIC hIGHLANDS AND HIGHLANDS.

ONE GRAND TOUR • HIGHLANDS, NEW JERSEY 07732-2039

iOUCATt DR. VINCENT 1. CAPRARO
Interim Superintendent

(732) 872-0900
Fax: (732) g72-1315

Email: vcaprarothhrs.us

\O\e:flher 30.2011

The Honorable President and
\lemhers ot the Board of LdLIcation
lcnr\ I lunson Reuional School 1)istrict

One Grand [our
II hiands. \e Jersey U32

Dear Board Memhers’C itizens:

\V are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual linancial Report (CAER) of the Flenrv Hudson
Renional School District (District). This report is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 This report
cm:tains financial atenienN, supplemental statements, and other financial and statistical information to
pro\ ide complete and lull disclosure of all material financial aspects of the District for the 2010-2011
fiscal scar.

tv to; the ccuru\. completeness and thirness of this report rests ith the District and, more
spceificallr - the office of the Scuool Business Administrator. Fo the best of our knowledge and belief.

i-. court and the cue losed data are accurate in all material aspects and are reported in a manner designed
pesent tiiirlr the manual posit ion and results of operation of the arGus Rinds and account groups of

the District All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the DistricCs
Inwical auivities loie been included.

This report was prepared in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles as set forth b the
trt\ cruinental Account no Standards Board GASB ) and is reprcsentat;\ e of the District’s continuinoauruloucu to pr \ Go uailiifiii! tilarcal information t the citizens of the District

•Thelntroductor\Section: include.s this transmittal letter, the DistrieCs organizational chart, a list
‘1 p p of:i ais. ad a map f :hc State or \co Jeiser

[hr lii iO’sctiu n lu tes the ii u Ilinird ofl I or nnlrpr 1 4ei t an lit rs Robert \
-)oRa;t rn-a g Oipiri\. CertiPed PGic Acount:rul. :hr h:isic tiuaneja sortemcnt. and the
umbini:r .rd indi\ iduOl fuitd and account go-up linancial statements.

p
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The.. Single Sadit Sectioo: is in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards: auditr.quiremen:s a pre.sibed by the ollice of I inance. Department of Education. State of NewJersey. and cogfflpc Mditijg. Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United‘states Lnthrmatien related to thi. smg!e audit. ;ncluding the auditor’s report in the internalcontrol tructure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings andqt;estk’ned w-ts. arc included in the single audit sectiol o this report.

REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SFRVICES

I he I lenr3 I ludsc’n Regional School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adoptedby the (IASB Statement \o 14 .ll funds end account groups ‘f the District are included in this report.1 he I i)iI d also at’, as fiscal agent lot State funds distributed to prisate schools located within theDktrkt boundarie% 1 he pris ate school ‘ersed i5 Mother Teresa Regional School in Atlantic Highlands.Becduse of its independent nature. none of this organization’s financial statements are included in thisreport. I he District encompasses the Boroughs ol •\tlantic Ili&hlands and Highlands. The Board otI di.cativn is comprised of fr.e membeis :iom highlands and four members from Atlantic Highlands.I .y nc eletted to thiee-year tenus and meet en the tlnid Vednesday of each month for the RegularK aid Meeting. 1)uring its m.etings, the Board determines District goals and priorities and conducts thehu,ii.ess of the Bc . I of Lducatien. Board meetings are open to inc public and begin at Th00 p.m. unlessathens ise noted. ike name at’ Henri Hudson Regional comes from the historic Henry Hudson Springsio.ated in .Mbntic I lighlands In 1609. Henry Hudson, sea captain of the Half Moon. touched land, anddress water from the spiinu. Ships continued to use this ping into the 1900’s.

I lie I)istrici pros ides a full-range of educational sen ices appropriate to grade In el.. —- !2. These includerqtular. as well a. inclusise education for disabled youngsters. The District is the only -12 SchoolDi:rict in ML’nmouth County. It ic accredited by the Middlc ctates .ssociation of Colleges andSondary Schools and appros cd by the Ness Jersey State Department of Education.

11w Pant teacher Orgini/ation (PTO is highly actise in the District and pros ides community support:. r i sariet,s it’ proitranis and actis itics tor the children.

YCONOMIC CONDITION

The l)istrict. located in Monmouth County. is comprised of the towns of Atlantic Highlands andI lighlai d’. I hea, are settled residential communities ssith limited amounts of industr4. Atlanticliuhlai 4. flir.’u’J is a -ia9e bamniuluts with few apartments or c.”ndnrn’niums. Highlands Borough isiN.’ kthle ..omn.anzt’ with ‘.esent-tise per.cnt (5° ) at the condominiums c “net oxupied Botht’.’. h€nt a aii scni”i c.t ien ptputittni1 11w Beruujh ot IlaJiland has dcsclopd a htignlsnds• .it • ma; i.’ en ei.t lbsti.u. ninli is ru’ided hs tI.: business tapa’er and is aggrcsisely expan.nj‘b %hi.I’s and husiatesse’. ‘sihi ir a peil au I la—et on ‘seek.i’Js. and an Ahnuai C lam 1 estisj.i. ae.iei pos;tis pa.1.eptin at thi. Disti%t tn taa. c,n.n uni:ie b’. niea.eJ ctinrnunity support



MAJOR INITiATIVES

In 2010-2011. Henry Huds.’n hired a full time principal. Mrs. Lenore Kingsmore. Mrs. Kingsmore hasbeen sery prcacth e iii continuing to improve the educational experience for all Henry Hudson students.She has also worked hard to reach out to the parents and the community and improve community supportfor the district.

The eights two (82) graduates of the Kent) Hudson Regional School Class of 2011 earned a total ofSI .632.250.00 in scholarships. Seventy Se’ien 77 members of the Henry Hudson Regional graduatingclass ‘ill be continuing their education in September 2011.

Thu Districfs band and choirs performed many local concerts. Thift seven percent (3 7%) of the studentbody participated in the band program. The 7 & 8” Grade Band had 61 members while the High SchoolS>mphonic Band had 88 members. The Marching Band traeled to Williamsburg, VA on June 3-4. 2011.At the end of 201 I. Mr. Tom Elliott. our band of 30 years retired. We wish him well and thank him forall his sears of sen ice.

Henry Hudson Regional School District participates in shared services to keep costs at a minimum. InJanuan. 20111 leni Hudson entered into a shared service agreement with Atlantic Highlands to share aBusiness Administrator. In addition, Henry Hudson Regional shares a Learning DisabilityTeacher’Consultant (l.DT’C) with The Highlands Elementary School. Henry Hudson provides bustransportation thr Atlantic Highlands Elcmentar) School and Highlands Elementary School class trips.The liability/property insurance is in a group insurance fund through Boynton & Boynton, the healthinurance is in a pooled insurance fund through Brown & Brown, and workma&s compensation insuranceis in the Monmouth-Ocean Counties Shared Services Insurance Fund through NJSBAIG. Transportationjointures and Chapter 192 ‘193 Non-Public Services are obtained through the MOESC (Monmouth-OceanEducational Services Commission). Cooperative purchasing of transportation and Non-Public Chapter1921193 Services are also obtained through MOESC. Henry Hudson Regional School District is also amember of the Bayshore Jointure Commission. This group is comprised of ten (10) school districts.I lent) Hudson Regional School District purchases gasoline for its school bus fleet through the AtlanticHighlands Harbor Commission. Henry Hudson Regional School District, Atlantic Highlands SchoolDistrict and Highlands School District participate in a shared Business Administrator, Supervisor ofCurriculum. Instruction and Supervisor of Special Services. School facilities are used extensively forcommunit> recreation programs. The school band and choruses participate in parades and concerts forboth commanities. School buses pros ide trps tbr the senior citizen groups. The school is a designatedRed Crass Emergency Shelter.

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS

[he mainalement of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal centralstructure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and.n -ita’, ms: adequate .tca’unt :ng data is compiled to allow lbr the preparation of financial statements inconlbrnlit3 with generall> accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure isJe.;i:tb:I tv lML”. ide reasonable but iti’t absolute assurance that these okicctises are met. the concept ofreasonable assuran.x reiogniacs that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to bederived from its implementation: and 2) the valuation of cost and benefits requires estimates and•i’,dntents at’ management.
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a rcipct t at’ tbdci & and state a’ ards, the Ditrit s responsible for ensuring that an adequate internalcutro, struetu: c is in ciace : ensure compi iane ith applicable Ia\\ s and reeulaticn related to thosecrnr. h!u nternJ e ntrol structure is subject to penedic e’ atuation b management of the District

\ pan oi the Di’trict’ s single audit described earl er. tests are made to determine the adequac of theintrnal Lontrol o cr compi ance Oh requ:icntent f la s. regulations, contracts and grants applicable totederal titj stac a\ard.

Ill D1FR (O’fROLs

The District maintains its accounts. appropriations and other financial records in accordance ‘a ith thepi sccdui ese5:ahlshed and prescribed li the State ol’ \e’a Jerse Department ol’ Ldueation.

1 he aldccti c of these huductar\ controL is to ensule compliance ith legal pros shins embodied in theannual appropriated budget appro\ ed b’ the ‘oters of the municipalities \nnual appropriated budgetsarc adopted for the general fund and the special res enue fund. The le el of hudgetar control (the e\ ci atii cli e\pcnditures cannot egall\ exceed the appropriated amount) is established b function and objectI’ e\pc1J it ic ‘a ith an mdis dual fund. I he District aRo maintains an encumbrance aeounting s” stein asic tc. h:iiue ot acompi’sliiiia hudgetar control Encumbered amounts it sear end are carried l’or’a ardto succeeding \ears and are not re—appropriated. Ihese amounts to he re—appropriated are reported asreser\ itins al tun balance at June ) i) 1 l As demonstrated by the s’atements and schedules includediii the l:nancial section oh’ this report. the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financialni a i ace i nen t -

AC(’OUNTING SYSTEI A\D REPORTS

lie )i”rct’ accointina t ccords reflect ,ccnerail\ accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by theti rnmeital \ccauntiitg Standards Board (Ci\SB [‘he accounting s\ stem of the District organization
i the hasi of Rind and account group. hesc fund and account groups are explained in •otes to theI iiianciai Statements” \ote I

(ASH MAAG1Z’1E’’F

I )is’riet’- ash :nanapeniert p cigrain aderesses the sues of safet\, iqiuhti and i ield ‘a hi Ic rna\nnizinuate :he Di5irh: Pu lIes the Ne’a Jersc\ Cash \lanaaemcnt Fund established by the Dis isbn at’ lnsestment of‘e.iaP Reurtincit ender the rusdic icr or ‘lie \e’a tc: icr State lii etment t a neil I he ni etn1Cnt pUiiL\
Iji ‘ j’ art, a’ ii,.l i \:e, a’ I a,acr1 Nt,stcnen:’:’ [heI ‘ I - i ii i i .1 ci ph i s h Jr eq uras t c det’ st pIst Iund in nihIR dcpositou res‘a’ . jia’an’ i a’ fe u Pr,rP \c: hDP-\’ lj

I flkrte ‘ r a a t fund’ ii dcp isO ‘a tb i t ii ca oanrcuna institutiona i . a : ea - i-I rJ ‘ ‘ak Ouputcrues ccc. i-’e’uc C-. Ii: c’’r’hrii,t

RISK MANA GEMENT



INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The State of New Jersey requires an annual audit by an independent certified public accounting firm.
Robert A. Ilulsart and Compan> as selected by the District to per[hrrn the audit for the fiscal year ended
June 30. 201 1 In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also as
designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1996. as amended and the related 0MB
Circular A-133 and the State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 0MB. The Auditor’s unqualified opinion
rendered on the District’s general basic financial statements, and their report on the combining andindi idual hind statements, is included in the financial section of this Comprehensive Annual FinancialReport. The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single auditsection of this report.

ACKNOWUEDCM ENTS

The preparation of this report was made possible by the dedicated services of the entire staff of theBusiness Office. Finally, the support and commitment to excellence by the Henry Hudson RegionalBoard of Education and the citizens of the District was vital to the successful issuance of this report andcontinuing efforts being made to improve our financial management and reporting.

Yours truly.

Dr. Vincent Capraro Janet Sherlock
Interim Superintendent School Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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9.cqotett cc. c’fu&att and (Jornfrong
CERTIFIED PUBUC 4CCOL’IfFAN7Y

ARMOUR S. HULSART. C.P.A.. pita., PtA. (1980.1880) T..ccØir
•RORERT A. HULSART, C.P.A., RU A.. P.5* (732)

p

ROGERT A HULSART. JR..C.P.A.. P.S.A
o.qps wait tow jerny onig.’dog

—-

—

i7321e81 4800
mceimo j. iiawaaaactr. a. C.P.A.. PtA.

INDEPENDENT AUDiTOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Iiem hudson Regional School District
Count) of Monmouth
Highlands, New, Jersey

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the goiernmental acti ides, thebusiness-type acti ides, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board ofEducation of the Henrj Hudson Regional School District, in the Count) of Monmouth. State ofNewJersey. as ofand for the fiscal year ended June 30. 2011. which collecti’iely comprise the District’s basicfinancial statements as listed in the table ofcontents. These financial statements are the responsibilits ofthe Henry Hudson Regional Board of Education’s management. Our responsibility is to e’bpress opinionson these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the I ‘nitedStates ofAmerica: the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gorernmeni AudilbigSicrndarth. issued jw the Comptroller General of the I ‘nited States: and audit requirements as prescribedby the Di ision of Finance. Department of Education. State ofNew Jerses. Those standards require thatsse plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about i hether the financial statements arefree ofmaterial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis. eiidence supporting theamounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accountingprinciples used and significant estimates made by management as sell as es aluating the oerall financialstatement presentation. We bcliee that our audit pros ides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to abose present fairly. in all material respects.the repectis e (manual position of the go ernmental acti’ ities. busines.s-ty pa actis itt. each major fund.and the aggregate remaimng fund inloimation of the I lent’> Hudson Regional Board of 1 ducation. in theCounty of Moitmouth. State 01 New Jersey. as of June 10. 2011. and the rcspetne changes in finani..ialposition and cash flows where ‘ipphii.nble. thereof for Wi. >eai then ended in tonfonnit w ithi accountingp1 iniples itenerall> ac.ceptt.d in th. I itited States of America.

in accordance with (bit i mm iW luduing Sian, lards. we hasi. also issued our report dated\n eniLier 10. 2Q11. on oui Lonsideration oh the I henry I ludson Regional Board of i’ducaiions internalontrnl oser financial reporting and nui tests of its compliance with ertain pros PIOuS of law’.hat ns. ..ontu.k.s .in1I gi.mts aurce’nc its .ad other matters I lit. purpose oh this ‘cpoit •. ti In bti’ q ‘ ‘I I t stit ‘f i t ; .‘ i. p ‘ . ‘. i Li,uii.eprnp,tat.ic iiip1M’t,a iiJtt%. ,aLI’i’flhliiLyr I •i ‘I
‘• r’ ‘Je .1 . . ri’ i•ni oil t’n. id tuiai iii of set tli.ii’ ial “tin. 01 on ‘nipIi.neII’is apait i in •iiti.u.al pan .1 øt.i .i idu nci formed in ai.tc rdane sill (. ninth Ink! ‘i: ‘I v’..kuJsmd sh i ilcl lit tinsidud iii a cssing the. ig,.q,lt’. of i’ur iulp
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The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 11through 16 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary informationrequired by the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We haveapplied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquires of management regarding themethods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we didnot audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements thatcollectively comprise the Flenry Hudson Regional Board of Education’s basic financial statements. Theaccompanying introductory section and other supplementary information such as the combining andindividual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules, and statistical information are presentedfor purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Thecombining and individual fund financial statements and long-term debt schedules have been subjected tothe auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, arefairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. Theintroductory section and statistical information have not been subjected to the auditing proceduresapplied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance arepresented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and BudgetCircular A-l33, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and New JerseyOMB’s Circular 04-04. Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aidrespectively, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has beensubjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in ouropinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as awhole.

Respectfully submitted,

ROBERT A. IJULSART AND COMPANY

Robert A. Hulsart
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 322
Robert A. Hulsart and Company

November 30, 2011
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hENRY hUDSON REGIONAL SCIIOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201!

UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of Henry Hudson Regional School District’s financial performanceprovides an overall review of the School District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30.2011. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District’s financial performanceas a whole; it should be read in conjunction with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFR)Letter of Transmittal which is found in the Introductory Section. and the School Board’s financialstatements found in the Financial Section and the notes thereto.

Financial Highlights

Key Financial highlights for the 2010-20 11 fiscal year are as follows:

• General revenues accounted for $9,323.1 74 in revenue. Program specific revenues in the form ofcharges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and contributionsaccounted for $490,156 to total revenues of $9,813,330.

• Total assets of governmental activities decreased by $73,357.

• The School District had $9,735,579 in expenses; only $490,156 of these expenses was offset byprogram specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues (primarily propertytaxes) of $9,323, 174 were adequate to provide for these programs.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements.These statements are organized so the reader can understand Henry Hudson Regional School District as afinancial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasinglydetailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement ofNet Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities ofthe whole school district, presenting both an aggregate ‘dew of the School District’s finances and alonger-term view of those finances, Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. Forgovernmental funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as whatremains for future spending. In the case of Tuckerton School District, the General Fund is the mostsignificant fund, with the Special Revenue Fund also ha ing significance.

The School Board’s auditor has provided assurance in his Independent Auditor’s Report. locatedimmediately preceding this Management’s Discussion and Analysis, that the Basic Financial Statementsare fairly stated. A user of this report should read the Independent Auditor’s Report carefully to ascertainthe level of assurance being pro’dded for each ot’the other pails of the Financial Section



Reporting the School District as a Whole

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provideprograms and activities, the view of the School District as a whole looks at all financial transactions andasks the question. “Ilo did do financially during the 2010-2011 fiscal year?” The Statement of NetAssets and the Statement of Activities helps answer this question. These statements include all assets andliabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sectorcompanies. This basis of accounting takes into account, all of the current year’s revenues and expensesregardless of when cash is receri ed or paid.

These two statements report the School District’s net assets and changes in those assets. Thischange in net assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a whole, thefinancial positions of the School District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may bethe result of many factors. some financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the SchoolDistrict’s property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition,required educational programs and other factors,

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided intotwo distinct kinds of activities:

• Governmental activities — All of the School District’s programs and services are reported hereincluding, but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plantfacilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities.

• Business-Type Activities — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recoverall the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service Enterprise Fund is reported as abusiness activity.

Reporting the School District’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the School District’s major (all) funds begins on exhibit B-i. Fund financialreports provide detailed information about the School District’s major funds. The School District usesmany funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. however, these fund financial statementsfocus on the School District’s most significant funds. The School District’s major governmental fundsare the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund. Capital Projects Fund and Debt Service Fund.
Governmental hinds

lhe School I)istrict’s activities are reported in Goernmental Funds. which focus on how moneyfkm s into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the futureyears. Fhe Goemmental Fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School l)istrict’sgeneral government operations and the basic ser ices it pro ides. Governmental Fund information helpsvon determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future tofinance educational programs. the relationship (or diflèrences) between goernmental activities(reported in the Statement of Net \ssts and thL Statement of \ctix Itles) and (IO\ erumental F unds nre’oI 1iCU lfl le tinanci ii statemenl



Enterprise Fund

The Enterprise Fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities: therefore. thesestatements are essentially the same.

The School District as a Whole

Table I provides a summary of the School District’s net assets for the fiscal years ended 2011 and2010.

Table 1
Net Assets

2011 2010Assets
Current and Other Assets $ 2,084,396 1,851,491Capital Assets. Net 13,193,169 13,679,140

Total Assets $ 15)27L565 l53J631

Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities $ 9,809,175 10,126,353Other Liabilities 471,564 465,185

Total Liabilities $4 Q2$0739 1 059 1,538

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt $4,993,169 5,154,140Restricted 1,761,250 1,482,371Unrestricted (1.757,593) (1,697,41 8)

Total Net Assets $ 4,996,826 4,939,093



14.

Table 2 shows the changes in net assets for fiscal years ended 2011 and 2010.

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions

General Revenues
Property Taxes
Grants and Entitlements
Other

Total Revenues

2011

S 176.021
314,135

8,008,592
1.330,989

(16,407)
9.813,330

2010

175,479
482,310

7,985,531
1,220.974

150.437
10,014,731

Program Expenses
Instruction
Support Services
Pupils and Instructional Staff
General Administration, School Administration,
Business

Operations and Maintenance of Facilities
Pupil Transportation

Interest on Debt
Unallocated Benefits
Other
Food Service
Total Expenses

Business-T pe Activities

Revenues for the District’s business-tpe activities (food service program) were comprised or’charges for services and federal and stale reimbursements.

• Food service expenses exceeded revenues b S 14.972.

• Charges for services represent $176,021 of revenue. 1 his represents amount paid by patrons for dail

3,891,558 3.431,413

1,829,298 1.692,410

524,547
709,314
882,558
373,194
779,288
496,752
249,061

9,735,570

$ 77,160
(Decrease)/Increase in Net Assets

638.693
616,704
892.939
385.912

1.919.323
539,111
239,153

10,355,658

34Q927)

food services,

• I edLIal reimbtreneiim lOr 1u!1Lhc, snaes and hrL;Lkf1t \Z
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Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program sen ices and the charges for services andgrants offsetting those services.

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and theinteraction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the contentand process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration and business include expenses associated withadministrative and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildingsand equipment in an effective working condition.

Curriculum and staff development includes expenses related to planning, research, developmentand evaluation of support services, as well as the reporting of this information internally and to the public.
Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and fromschool, as well as to and from school activities, as provided by state law.

interest and fiscal charges involve the transactions associated with the payment of interest andother related charges to debt of the School District.

Other includes unallocated depreciation and amortization.

School Board Funds

The School Board uses funds to control and manage money for particular purposes. The Fund’sbasic financial statements allow the School Board to demonstrate its stewardship over and accountabilityfor resources received from the Boroughs of Atlantic highlands and Flighlands taxpayer’s and otherentities, including the State of New Jersey and the Federal Govermnent. These statements also allow thereader to obtain more insight into the financial workings of the School Board, and assess further theSchool Board’s oerall financial health.

As the School Board completed the fiscal year ended June 30. 2011. it reported a combined netasset balance of S4.9’)6.826. lie Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue Fxpenditures, and Changesin Fund Balances of Go ernrnental Funds to the Statement of Activities presents the reader with a detailedexplanation of the differences between the net change in hind balances and changes in net assets.
The School Boards budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accountingfor certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The mostsiuniticant budgeted fund is the General Fund

Cr c’urse of the ‘Wear, Uk. SLhool Board rex ises its budget as It attempts to takc iitv, dtnti n inexpckd hanoes in rexcnue and expLndltules
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Capital Assets

At June 30, 2011. the School Board had approximately $19,594,266 invested in a broad range of
capital assets, including land, buildings, furniture, vehicles, computers, instructional equipment and other
equipment. This amount is net of accumulated depreciation to date. Table II below shows the net book
value of capital assets at the end of the 2011 fiscal year.

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities

Capital Assets at June 30, 2011
Land $ 83,060
Site Improvements 436,210
Buildings 16,362,354
Machinery and Equipment Q57 8,985

Total S 19,585,281 &985

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2011, the School District had $10,134,175 as outstanding debt. Of this amount
$117,850 is for compensated absences, $8,200,000 for bonds for school construction and $1,816,325 for
other employment benefits.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

The Boroughs of Atlantic Highlands and Highlands are primarily residential communities, with
few ratables. The majority of revenues needed to operate the District are derived from homeowners
through property tax assessments and collections, which is voted by the residents annually.

In conclusion, the Henry Hudson Regional School District has committed itself to financial
excellence for many years. li addition, the School District’s system for financial planning, budgeting,
and internal financial controls are well regarded. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal
management to meet the challenge of the future.

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the School District’s finances and to show the School Districts accountability for the
money it receives. If von have questions about this report or need additional information contact: Mrs.
Janet Sherlock School Business Administrator. Board Secretary at Henry Hudson Regional Board of
Education. One Grand Tour, Highlands, NJ 07732,
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HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Exhibit A-I

JUNE 30, 2011

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Recei ables, Net
Inventory
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Reserve Account - Cash

Capital Assets, Net
Total Assets

Liabilities
Deferred Revenue
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted For:

Debt Service
Other Purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Governmental
Activities

S 111,544
161670

1,661.249
100,001

13,062,476
15,097,940

146,564

325,000
9,809,175

10,280,739

4,862,476

1,761,249
(1.806,525)

8 4.817.201

Business-Type
Activities

44,409
3,897

626

130,693
179.625

130.693

48,932

1 79,625

Total

155,953
166,567

626

1,661,249
100,001

13,193,169
15,277,565

146,564

325.000
9,809,175

10,280,739

4,993,169

I
1,761,249

(1.757.593)

4.996,826

The m panv ne nots to tinane al Tatenents aic an 1ntera[ part ‘t lhN tateni
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hENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT Ehjbit B-I 20.

BALANCE SHEET

(;OVERNMENTAL FENDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Special Total
General Revenue Debt Governmental

Fund Fund Service Funds
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 111,544 111.544
Cash and Cash Equivalents-Restricted 1.761.249 I I .6 1.250
Receivables from Other Governments 71,812 90,858 162,670
interfund Receivable 65,713

_________

- 65.713

TotalAssets S 2,010,318 90.858 I 2,101.177

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:

interfund Payable S - 65,713 65,713
Deferred Revenue 25,145

___________

25.145
Total Liabilities 90.858

_____________

90.858

Fund Balance:
Restricted for:
Excess Surplus-Designated for Subsequent Year’s 357,133 357,133
Expenditures

Excess Surplus 672,479 672,479
Maintenance Reserve 402,000 402,000
Capital Reserve Account 100,001 100,001

Committed To:
Other Purposes 22,924 22,924

Assigned To:
Designated by the BOE fur Subsequent Year’s
Expenditures 206.712 206.712

Unassigned:
General Fund 249,069 249,069
Debt Service

_____________ __________

I

_______________

Total Fund Balances 2,010,318
- I 2.010,319

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance S 2,t) 10.318 90.858

Amounts reported fbr governmental activities in
the Statement of Net Assets (A-I) are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the funds. the cost of the
assets is S 19,380,972 and the accumulated
depreciation is $6,318,496 I 3,062,46

Accrued Interest
(121,419)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable. are
not clue and pay able in the current period and
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the
funds. (see Note Si

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HENRY hUDSON REGIONAL. SCHOOL. DISTRICT 23.

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHA? GES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Exhibit B-3

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2011

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (From B-2) S 221,660

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of
Activities (A-2) are Different Because:
Capital Outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in
the period.
Depreciation Expense (496.752)
Capital Outlays 46,177

(450,575)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds.
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net
assets and is not reported in the statement of activities. 325,000

Repayment of annual other postemployment benefits is an expenditure in
the governmental funds, but the repayment of benefits decreases
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported
in the statement of activities.

(41,386)

In the statement of activities certain operating activities are measured by the
amount earned while in the government funds. Expenses are reported in the
amount of financial resources used.
Compensated Absences

33,564

In the statement of activities. interest on long-term debt in the statement of
activities is accrued, regardless of when due. in the governmental fund,
interest is reported when due. 4.469

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities S 92732

I l .P \Ote I 11 tnnt tic u tcnT pm o U h ili knt



HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL. SCHOOL. IMSTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRiETARY FUNDS
Exhibit B--I

Noncurrent Assets:
Equipment
Accum u laled [)eprec iation

I otal Fixed Assets

Total Assets

Net Assets:

Investment in Capital Assets
I urestricted

JUNE 30, 2011

Assets:
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equialents
.-\ccounts Receivable:

State
Federal

Inentorv
Fotal Current Assets

Enterprise

Funds

$ 44,409

74
3,823

626

48.932

230,627
(99,934)

130,693

S 79.625

s 130693

48.932

S I 79.625
lotal Net Assets



HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL. SCHOOL DISTRICT 25.

Operating Revenues:
Daily Sales

Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries

88.477
Cost of Sales

106.877
Supplies and Materials 6.967
Management Fee 10.000
Cleaning

4,029
Insurance

5.800
Repairs

5,1 12
Depreciation 15.369
Miscellaneous

6.430
Operating Expenses 249.061

Operating Gain!(Loss) (73.040)

Non—Operating Re enues:
State Sources:

State School I unch Program I .077
Federal Sources:

National School Lunch Program 40.82 1
Federal Breakfast Proeram 14.047
Food Distribution Program 2.123

lotal Non—Operatme Re cnucs 58.068

C bange m Net Assets (14.972

Adjustme 111 for Fixed Assets
Net Assets. July 1 48.535

Net :\sSclN, June

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND ChANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Exhibit B-S
PROPRIETARY FUNI)S

JUNE 30 2011

F nterp rise

Fund

S 74.650

1.371

176.021

5

FCc a corn ai ii’ Notes to lnanc al Ste rnrncnts are an integral part at th s statement.



HENRY HUIISON REGIONAL SCHOOL I)ISTRICT 26.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Exhibit B-6
PROPRIETARY FUNflS

JUNE 30. 2011

Enterprise
Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Acti ities:
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Employees
Payments to Suppliers

Net Cash Provided (Used) b Operating Acti ities

Cash F lows trom Noneapital Financing Activities:
State Sources

Federal Sources

Net Cash Provided by i\oncapital Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Actix ities:
Operating hiceme (Loss)
Depreciation
Federal Commodities Consumed
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)

to Cash Pros ded Used by Operatini. Acti ities
[)ecrease( Increase) in lnventor\
Decrease’(lncrease in Accounts Receivable

S 176.021

(88,477)

(141.871)

(54,327)

1.077

54.868

55.945

1.6 18

42.791

5 44,409

5 (73.040)

I 5.369

-

(11 I)

S 54.327
\et Cash Provided (Usedt by Operating Activities



27HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL L)ISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

Exhibit B-7

As sets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

Net Assets:
Reserved - Scholarships
Reserved - Unemplo ment Benefits

Private
Purpose

Scholarship
Eu fl(l

5 37,759

S 37.759

s 37.759

5 37,759

Unern ploynient
Compensation

Trust

70.340

70.340

70.340

Total Net Assets 70,340



28.HENRY HE I)SON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FI1)UCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201 1

Exhibit B-8

Additions

Contributions:
Other

Total Contributions

Investment Earnings:
Interest

Net Investment Earnings
1 otal Additions

Deductions
Unemployment Claims
Scholarships Awarded
Total [)eductions
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of the Year

Private

Purpose

Sc ho Ia rs hi i
Fund

$ 2-1.171
24.171

360

360

24,531

26.538
26.538

(2.007)
39.766

$ 37.759

Uneni I)Ioyment
Co ni pensation

T rust

7

/ ‘‘ j)

163
163

7.698

17.990

17.990
(10.292)
80.632

70.340

The accompanvirie Notes to Financ.ial Statements; are an integral part of this statement.
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29.

BOARD OF EDUCATiON

HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2011

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the I lenr I ludson
Regional School District (District) have been prepared in conformity with generalk accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting

Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board’s accounting

policies are described helo.

A. Reporting Entity:

The Henry l-ludson Regional School District is a Type II district located in the County of
Monmouth. State of New Jersey. As a Type II district, the School District functions
independently through a Board of Education. The board is comprised of nine members elected to

three-year terms. The purpose of the district is to educate students in grades 7-12. The
operations of the District include one Regional Junior High School/High School. located in the
Highlands. The Henry 1-ludson Regional School District had an approximate enrollment at June
30, 2011 of 403 students.

The primary criterion fbr including activities within the District’s reporting entity, as set
forth in Section 2100 of the GASB

is whether:

• The organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)
• The District holds the corporate powers of the organization
• The District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board
• The District is able to impose its will on the organization
• The organization has the potential to impose a financial/benefit/burden on the District
• There is a fiscal dependenc by the organization on the District

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The governrnent—\ ide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities. These statements report financial information tr the District as a hole
exciLIdjn fiduciai acti\ ities. such as student activities, 1ndividual funds are not displa ed hut
T C ‘t UCI kMI-’ l i,Ii um iii ii k ix c, ,nei ‘ ix s, pøorrLd bx u. mu dL iii ud

I 1i . fl “ ‘ s- 5,, 1 i’ 5 li ,, 1

xs ith fees cii a1 ced to cxrernal pau ics



30.

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continuetfl

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program
re enues directly connected with the functional program A function is an assemhl of similar
activities and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the
expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct lunctional activity. Program revenuesinclude ( 1) charges for services which report fees and other charges to users of the Districfs
services and (2) operating erants and contributions. These re enues are subject to external lv
imposed restrictions to these program uses. Tax levies and other revenue sources not properlyincluded with program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietar\ and fiduciaryfunds. The New Jersey Department of Education (the “Department’) has elected to require NewJersey districts to treat each go ernmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the optionnoted in (IASR No. 34. paragraph 76. The Department believes that the presentation of all fundsas major is important br public interest and to promote consistency among district financialreporting models.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement
Presentation

The financial statements of the District are prepared in accordance with generallyaccepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Districfs reporting entity applies all relevantGovernmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The government—wideand proprietary fund financial statements apply Financial Accounting Standards I3oard (FASB)pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November30, 1989. unless those pronouncenlents conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. inwhich case, GASI3 prevails.

The government— ide statements report using the economic resources measurementfocus and the accrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or eliminationof internal acti it (between or within funds). Pmprietarv and fiduciary fund financialstatements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting although internal acti it\: iSnot eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses arerecorded \ hen a hahiliiv is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash liows. ount\ taxrevenues are recognized in the year for which they are le ied while grants are recognized whengrantor eligibiiit requirements are met. Ihe Unemployment 1 rust lund recognizes employerand emolovee contributions in the period in w h ich contributions are due.

(joveniniental fund financial statements report using the current financial resourcesmeasurement focus and the mod i fled accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized whenthe are both measurable and available .A ailahie means collectible within the current period orsoon enough thereafter to apply current liabilities, The District considers revenues to hea\ ai able it’ the’ are collected within 60 da s ut the end ot the fiscal scar. Expenditures arere.corded when the related i’und I ia.hilitv is incurred, except for Ione4erni pension andcompensated aiwe! ccs. w Ii ch rc rcprt’d s expenditurcN m the car due.
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NOTE 1: Sunimarv of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement
Presentation (Continued)

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual includes Intergovernmental revenues, and
the count\ tax levy. In general. other re enues are recognized when cash is received.

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues
and expenses related to the primary continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating
revenues for proprietar funds are charges to customers for food sales and fur ser ices pros ided
to other governmental entities. Principles operating expenses are the costs 0f providing goods or
services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues
and expenses are classified as non—operating in the financial statements.

1). Fund Accounting:

Fhe accounts of the District are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund
accounting to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions on the resources available. The
principles of fund accounting require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting
purposes into funds or account groups in accordance with activities or objecthes specified for
the resources. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with a self.balancing set of accounts.
An account group, on the other hand, is a financial reporting device designed to provide
accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do
not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Funds are classified into three
categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into
separate “fund types”.

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is
used to account for all expendable financial resources except those required to be
accounted fur in another fund.

Speu lRL\ennL Fund I he Disti ict aLcounts toi thc. pi ocecds of specific I c\ cfltiL
sources (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) that are legaII
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes in the special revenue funds.

(ipitilPioJcct%fund thc LpItal plojccts fund i’ uscd to KLount loi ill tin inc
resources to he used for the acquisition or construction of niator capital facilities other
than those financed h proprietary funds).

Debt Service Fund: Die debt service fund is used to account fur the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance
inaor property acquisition. construction and impro\ ement programs.

Proprietary 1un(l T pe

intcrprisc 5un.I: Iocc unt I ur opcrations that arc- teimnced and -pcatcd Hi H iHHiiiiCr
fmifar to privatc Dutnes eiiicrprics. in hch thc :ncnt of the Ditrici is that the
costs of providing goods or services to the District on a continuing basis he finance.d or
rcco cred primardv throuch user chares.



32.

NOTE I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Ii Fund Accountin2 (Continued):

Fiduciary Fund Types

RstaudAgcnc’Fiids: The trust and agency funds are used to account for assets
held by the District on behalf of outside parties. including other governments, or on
behalf of other funds v ithin the i)istrict.

Vnçjplovment cpfflpensation Trust Fund: The trust fund is used to account for assets
held under the terms of a formal trust agreement. The District reimburses the costs of
unemployment benefits paid by the New Jersey Department of Labor.

Agenc Fjayroll and Student AcjvitieyEu): Agency funds are used to
account for the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency
funds are custodial in nature and do not inolve measurement of results of operations.

E. Budgets/Budgetan Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general,
special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the County office and are
voted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared
using the modified accrual basis of accounting the legal level of budgetary control is established
at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most
specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in
N.J.A.C. 6A:23-2.2(g)l. All budget amendments must be approved by School Board resolution.
Budget amendments during the year ended June 30. 2011 were insignificant.

The Public School Education Act of 1975. limits the annual increase of any district’s net
current expense budget. The Commissioner of Education certifies the allowable amount for each
district but ma grant a higher level of increase if he determines that the sums so provided would
be insufficient to meet the identified goals and needs of the district or that an anticipated
enrollment increase requires additional hinds.

The Commissioner must also revie every proposed local school district budget for the
next school year, lie examines ever item of appropriations hr current expenses and budgeted
capital outla to determine their adequacy in relation to the identified needs and goals of’ the
district, If. in his view. they are insufficient, the Commissioner must order remedial action, If
necessar . he is authorized to order changes in the local district budget.

Once a budget is approved, it can be amended by transfers or additional appropriation of’
fund balances by approval ola majorit of the members of the Board Amendments are
presented to the Board at their regular meetings Each amendment must have Board approval.
Such am.endments are made hefbre the Oct. are reflected in the official minutes of the Board and
are nor made after fiscal year-end a dictated by law indi idual transfiz’rs were not material in
IL latlon to the riginal appi upri inon A1 uneommitted hudgLt appropria1ions lapse at eai end
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NOTE 1: Sumniarv of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

If Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued):

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is ernplo ed as a management
control de’Jce during the ear. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences
between the budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the
exception of the special reenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed
as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The following presents a reconciliation of the general fund revenues and special revenue
fund re enues and expenditures from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and
Actual — General. Special Revenues and Debt Ser ice Funds to the GAAP basis of accounting as
presented in the Combined Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

All Governmental Fund Tpes. Note that the District does not report encumbrances
outstanding at sear end as expenditures in the general fund since the general fund budget follo s
modified accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition polic for the last state aid
payment.

F. Encumbrances:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation.
Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as
reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities hut rather commitments related to unperformed contracts fbr goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received
advances are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred re enucs at fiscal ear end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal \ ear. An entry
ill be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the

certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

Short- Ferm Interfund Receivables/Pavables:

Short—Term interfund reccivableN pa ahlc.s represents amounts that are ov cd. othcr than
chargcs har good or ser\ ccs rendered to.from a particular fund in the District and that are due
within one year.

H Inventories and Prepaicl Expenses

Inventones and hrenaid e\penses. s hich beneflt future ucrods arc recorded a an
ea.e-nditnre durm the ar 01 purchare, 1.he value of inventories remain inc at the end of the
fia1 year is not included on the balance sheet.
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NOTE 1: Summary of SinitIcant Accounting Policies (Continued)

H. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses (Continued)

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the
first-in—first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the enterprise fund represent payments
made to vendors for services that ill benefit periods beyond June 30. 2011

I. Capital Assets and Depreciation

The District’s property, buildings and improvements. equipment. vehicles, furniture and
fixtures with useful lives of five years or more are stated at historical or estimated historical cost
and are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary Fund capital assets are
reported in its respective fund.

The District contracted with an outside service companY during the 2003 fiscal year to
provide a report with a comprehensive detail of capital assets and depreciation. The report
included capital assets purchased during the 2002-2003 fiscal year and prior with a historical cost
of $2,000 or more. Accumulated depreciation prior to fiscal ear 2003. fiscal ear 2003
depreciation expense, total accumulated depreciation and book values were also provided. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend
the useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method.
When capital assets are disposed. the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed
from the respective accounts. Estimated useful lives, in ears. for depreciable assets are as
follows:

Buildings and Improvements 20 — 50
Equipment and Vehicles 5 20
Furniture and Fixtures 5 — 20

The District is currently in the process of obtaining and installing software that will
maintain proper capital asset and depreciation records.

Capital asset acti itv for the sear ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Adjustments June 30, 2011

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets That Are

Not Being Depreciated:
[and S 83.060 83.060

Total 83.060 83.060

Depreciable Assets:
Site Improements 4E.62. 10 436.21(1
Buildins
Equipment J;3.6Z 26318 3627) 2NQ34$

[otal - 19 022l 26318 t23O627) j27 912
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

I. Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)

Balance Balance
July 1,2010 Additions Adjustments June 30, 2011

Less: Accumulated
Depreciation:

Sites (132 104) (7426) (235 624) (375 154)
Buildings (4955 239) (393 844) 1 516 705 (3 832 388)
Equipment (818,788) J95.482) (L196.684) (2.110,954)

Total Accumulated
Depreciation j4j) j49&752) 84,397 jj496)

Net Depreciable Assets 13,596M80 (47Q,44) fl460) 12,979A16

Governmental Activities
Capital \ssets (Net) 513 679 130 (470 434) (146 230) 13 062,476

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Adjustments June 30, 2011

BusinessType Activities:
Equipment $ &985 221,642 230,627

Less: Accumulated
Depreciation:

Equipment j) (15,369) j9934)

BusinessType Capital
Assets (Net) (15,369) 146,062 130,693

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follow:
Unallocated S 496,752
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

J. Compensated Absences

District emplo ces are permitted. v ithin certain limitations, to accrue vacation and sick
leave in varying amounts under the Districts personnel policies and may be paid at a later date
according to contractual agreements.

Fhe liabilit for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types is
recorded in the government-side financial statements as a non-current liability. Governmental
funds report onl matured compensated absences payable to currentl terminating emploees and
are included in wages and benefits payable

K. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue in the special revenue funds represent cash hich has been received
hut not yet earned. See Note 1(F) regarding the special revenue hind.

L. Fund Equity

The go ernmental fund financial statements report reser ed fund balance for amounts
not available for appropriation or legall restricted for specified purposes. The general fund
reserve for restricted purposes includes net assets relating to capital reserve (See Note 10).

NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and investments

Cash and cash equivalents includes petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, and
short term investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Investments are stated at cost, hich approximates market. The District classifies
certificates of deposit. which have original maturity dates of more than three months hut less than
twel\ e months from the date ol’ purchase. as investments.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public fluids in public
depositories located in New Jersey which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, or by an other agency of the
Lnited States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School districts are also
permitted to deposit public funds in the State of iNew Jersey Cash Management Fund.

\e Jerse\ htatLite. requne pubi depositories ton iaintain collateral for deposits of
public finds that exceed depositor\ insurance limits as toIlo 5:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5 oh the a erage
dai R balance ol collected public kinds on deposit.

.ln addition to the above collateral re.ql4irement. if the public funds deposited exceed 75%
the capital tund at the deositor the ciep snmrv mut pravoe collateral hay inc a market

‘nine at least eciuni 1 the amount eacccdnc
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NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Deposits

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal
Reserve Bank of Philadelphia. the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking
institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve S stem and has capital funds of not less than
525.000000.

Investments

New Jersey statutes permit the District to purchase the following types of securities:

a. Bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations
guaranteed by the United States.

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home
Loan Bank. Federal National Mortgage Agency or any United
States Bank for cooperatives which have a maturity date not greater
than twelve months from the date of purchase.

c. Bonds or other obligations of the school district.

As of June 30, 2011, cash and cash equivalents and investments of the District consisted
of the following:

Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Checking and Tvoney Market Accounts $ 1,759,341
Cash Management Accounts 374.416

$i,i33,757

The carrying amount of the DistricFs cash and cash equivalents at June 30. 2011 was
$2 I 3 757 and thL bank balancc w is $2 395 44 Of thc bank halancc $100 000 was Lo cad
h fcdLlal dLposltor\ msurancc and Si 659 34i was coered h a Loll ttcral pool mamtamLd b’s
the banks as required by New Jersey statutes.
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NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk Categories

All bank deposits and investments as of the balance sheet date are classified as to credit
risk by the following two categories described below:

Bank Balance
June 30, 2011

Depository Account
Insured:
FDIC $ 100,000
GUDPA 1,659.341

Uninsured 374,416

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The District does not have a formal policy for custodial credit
risk.

At June 30, 2011 the District held $374,416 in uninsured deposits.

NOTE 3: General Long-Term Debt

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the following changes occurred in liabilities
reported in the general long-tenn debt account group:

Balance Balance Long-Term 2011-12
June 30, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011 Portion Payment

Compensated Absences
Payable $ 151,414 33,564 117,850 117,850

Other Employment
Benefits 1.774.939 130.361 88,975 1.816.325 1.816.325

Bonds Payable 8.525.000

_______

325.000 8.200.000 7.875000 325.000

S 10.451.353 130.361 447,539 10,i34j75 9,801,175 325.000

A. Bonds Payable

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality
through referendums .All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of
usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are of general oblieation bonds.

Bonds issued January 28. 2003 for 810,340.000 thr additions and ren.ovations to the high
school maturi.ng March 1, 2028 with a balance of $8,200,000 at June 30, .0 11 with interest rates
from 435% to 5%
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NOTE 3: General Lon2-Ternl Debt (Continued)

A. Bonds Pay able (Continued)

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding is as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Year Ending .lune 30.

2012 $ 325.000 364.256 689256
2013 350.000 350850 700.850
2014 350.000 336.413 686.413
2015 375.000 321.975 696.975
2016 400.000 306.506 706.506
2017-2021 2.275.000 1.261.981 3.536.981
2022-2026 2.800.000 705.550 3.505.550
2027-2028 1.325.000 92.500 L41 7.500

$ 8,200cl0 L740M3 1 1 l.940.03 I

NOTE 4: Pension Plans

Description of Plans — All required employees of the District are covered by either the
Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund which have
been established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and
Benefits (Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations
of both Systems will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The
Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System and the
Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained by writing to the Division
of Pensions and Benefits, PC Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — The Teachers’ Pension and Annuit
Fund was established as of January I. 1955, under the provisions of N,J,S,A. I 8A :66 to provide
retirement benefits. death. disability and medical benefits to certain qualified memher. The
Teachers’ Pension and Annuit Fund is considered a cost—sharing multiple—employer plan ith a
special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made h the
State of Ne\\ Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non—contributing
emplosers \leiuhership is niandator Er substantially all teachers or members of the
protessonai stat eeriiled by the State Board of E\aminers. and emplo\ ees of the Department ot

ii Ii i ‘aks iii it o. unLl tL.-.IoIfl 1 Id .LIIIIiI,j



40.

NOTE 4: Pension Plans (Continued)

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) I he Public Employees’ Retirement
Sstem (PERS) as established as ofJanuar’ 1. 1955 under the pro\ isions ofN.J.S.A. 43: 1 5A to
pm ide retirement, death. disabiIit and medical benelits to certain qualilied members. Ihe
Public Eniploees Retirement S stem is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is
mandator ftr substantially all full-time emplox ees of the State of New Jerse or an counts.
municipalit school district, or public agenc\ . pro ided the emplo\ee is not required to he a
member of another state-administered retirement s stem or other state or local jurisdiction.

Vestin2 and Benefit Pros isions The esting and benefit provisions fir PERS are set
b\ N.J.S.A. 43:1 5A and 43.3B, and J.S.A. I 8A:6C for FPAF. All benefits est after eight to
ten ‘ ears of serx ice. except for medical benefits that est after 25 ears of ser ice. Retirement
benefits br age and ser ice are aailable at age 60 and are generally determined to he I 60 of the
final aerage salar fbr each sear of ser ice credit, as defined. Final aerage salar equals the
a erage salary Jhr the final three \ ears of service prior to retirement (or highest three ears’
compensation if other than the final three years). Members may seek earls retirement after
achie ing 25 sears of ser ice credit or they ma elect deferred retirement after achieving eight to
ten sears of serx ice in which case benefits would begin the first da’ of the month after the
member attains normal retirement age. The iPAF and PERS pros ide for specified medical
benefits for members ho retire after achie ing 25 years of qualified service, as defined, or
under the disahilit pros ision of the S stem.

Members are alwa s fulls ested for their own contributions and. after three \ears of
sers ice credit, become ested for 2° o of related interest earned on the contribution. In the case of
death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the
members’ accounts.

Significant Legislation - I)uring the year ended June 30. 1997. legislation was enacted
Chapter 114. P.1.. 1997) authoriiing the New Jersey Economic Deelopment Authorit to issue
bonds, notes or other obligations fbr the purpose of financing, in full or in part, the State of New
Jersey’s portion of the unfunded accrued liability under the State of New Jersey retirement
systems. Additional legislation enacted during the year ended June 3t). 1997 (Chapter 115. P.1..
1997). changed the asset ‘ aluation method from market related value to full—market value. This
legislation also contains a pros ision to reduce the emplo cc contribution rate b of 1° to
4,5° lbr calendar years 1998 and 1999, and to allow for a reduction in the employee’s rate after
calendar ear 1999. pros iding excess \ aluation assets are asailable. I he legislation also
pros ided that the [)istricls’ normal contributions to the Fund ma he reduced based on the
re aluation of assets. I)ue to recoznition of the bond proceeds and the change in asset aluation
method as a result of enactment ol Chapters 114 and 15. all unfunded accrued liabilities cre
eliminated. e\cepl fl’r the unfunded I ability for local earl retirement inceriti e heneflts,
aeeordingl. the pensi n c sis fbr I P \1 and P1 RS were i educed.

j4iPolic I he contribution po1ic is et by \cw ,Ierse\ State Statutes and
conti ibutions are required h acti\ e members and contributing cmplo ers. Plan membet and
emplo\ er comi ihutions ma he aniended b State of New Jersey legislation. hI Al and P1 RS
pros ide for emplo\ cc contributions of 5° of emplox ecs’ annual Lompensation as defined
I mokw crs arc c qu rd t ntrihutc at an actuat ialls detci m ned iate in both I P \1 and P1 RS
I he aLu.nL1i\ .ieiernncd .hj!

‘ !nei:re t.r

ri t r dL Ii a I s I Lt i ci c ii i ii a der or c n k Itttc I c
Diii LI a Iron ontr hut no er .f’ ihe I P \1
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NOTE 4: Pension Plans (Continued)

I eislaiion enacted during I )93 pro ides earl retirement incenti es for certain members
of I PAT and PFRS who met certain age and sen ice requirements and who applied for retirement
between certain dates in the 1994 fiscal ear. Ihe earls retirement incenties included: (a) an
additional fi e ears of sen ice credit for emplo ees at least age 50 w ith a minimum of 25 sears
of ser ice: (h) free health benefits for emploees at least 60 years old with at least 20 ‘tears of
sert ice: and (c) an additional $500 per month for two ears for employees at least age 60 ‘a ith 10
sears hut less than 2(1 cars of ser\ ice. Fhe Hoard will assume the increased cost for the earls
retirement as it af6.cts their districts.

During the ‘ear ended June 30. 2011. the State of New Jersey contributed S228.64 to
the TPAT for post—retirement medical benefits on behalfof the District Also, in accordance with
NJS.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jerse reimbursed the District $254.470 during the year
ended June 30. 2011 for the emplocr’s share of social security contributions for FPAF members
as calculated on their base salaries. These amounts hae been included in the general-purpose
financial statements. and the combining and indi idtial fund and account group statements and
schedules as re enues and expenditure in accordance w ith GASB 24.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS
Annual Percentage Net

Year Pension of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
63011 $71.256 l00°o $0
630’lO 53,585 100% 0
6’30 09 114.996 100% 0

Three-Year Trend information for TPAF (Paid On-Behalf of the flistrict)
Annual Percentage Net

Year Pension of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
630’ll $254,470 100% 0
630 10 231,830 100°c 0
6 30’09 240,750 100°o 0

NOTE 5: Post-Retirement Benefits

P.1 -)8’. e. 84 and P.1 1990. cO required I eacher’.’ Pen’ions and \nnu,t\ 1- und
I P \F and the Pubhi I mglo’ ces’ Retirement S teni (P1 RS cspeet ely. to lund post

retirement medical benefits fiar those State emploees who retire aficr accumulating 2 S y ear\ of
credited ser ice or on a di ahi 1 its retirement P I 2t>0 c I 03 amended the law to eliminate the
lunding of post rLtlrement medical benefits through the I P \I and P1 RS It created separate
fluids utside of tik. pension plans lot the Ilinding and pa ment of post-retnement medical
benefits fir retired State cmplo ees and retired educational elnplo\ ee. .\s of June 0. 2010
Ilk re S ,ZXS ith e eIiiHe loi p r retlrmenl iiedic.i henefliN I flu ‘i of II1CSL

Intiduj ti- Oh ntihoii tP Slab in , u1c ‘\ it P 1 °°4

t -ido ‘ InuJ ‘a p’ tiih a -‘

(i’; he,LlIii1no [1 1 .ll ‘i ,ii
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NOTE 5: Post-Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The State is also responsible fir the cost attributable to P.L. 192 c. 126. ‘ hich provides
free health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Prorani who retired from a
board of education or county college ith 25 ears of service. The State paid S I 26.3 million
to\ard Chapter 126 benefits for 14.050 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2010.

NOTE 6: Intcrfaand Receivables and Pavables

From To
General Fund $ 65.713
Special Revenue Fund 65.713

$65,713 65,713

Will be liquidated when receivables are received.

NOTE 7: Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as
directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16).
Accounting ibr Compensated Ahsences’. A liabilit for compensated absences attributable to
services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the
employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the right to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance
with the Districts personnel policy. Upon termination. employees are paid for accrued vacation.
The Districfs polic permits emplo ees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry ibrward the
full amount to subsequent ears. t pon retirement employees shaH be paid b’v the District lhr the
unused sick leave in accordance with the District’s agreements with the various employee
unions.

In the district—wide 5iaie,nc’ni 0/AL’! -1sse!s. the liabilities hose average maturities are
greater than one ear should be reported in two components -- the amount due within one \ ear
and the amount due in more than one year.

The liability Or vested compensated absences as ofJune 30. 2011. was $1 17,850.

NOTE 8: Capital Reserve Account

A capital reserve account was established h the Henry Hudson Regional Board of
Education h inclusion of S 150.000 on October 8. 2001 for the accumulation of funds for use as
capital outla\ expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained

thL ,!L Li U HI I IHLH IL 10 L LI1,j i hid in lal al,.L
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NOTE 8: Capital Reserve Account (Continued)

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the
district’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the
department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in
the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by Board resolution at year-end
of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts. or both. A district
may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been
obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four
special elections authorized pursuant to NJ.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to NJ.A.C. 6:23A-14.l(g).
the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted
capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2010 to June 30. 2011 fiscal year is as
follows:

Beginning Balance, July 1,2010 $ 1

Transfer from Surplus by Board Resolution 100,000

Ending Balance, June 30, 2011 $100,001

NOTE 9: Inventory

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2011 consisted of the following:

Food $ 348
Supplies 278

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required by the
Single Audit Law of 1984) is the difference between market value and cost of the commodities at
the date of purchase and has been included as an item of nonoperating revenue in the financial
statements.

NOTE 10: Fund Balance Appropriated

General Fund Of the $2,067,611 General Fund fund balance at June 30. 2011.
$22,924 is reserved for encumbrances: 8100.001 has been placed in the capital reserve: 8402.000
is in maintenance reserve; $206,712 is designated for subsequent year’s expenditures; $672,479
is excess surplus and 8306.362 is undesignated; $357,133 is designated for subsequent year’s
expenditures excess surplus.

OTE ii: Calculation of Excess Surplus

In accordance with NJ.SA, I 8A:7F7. the desiunation for Reserved Fund Balance —

Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant tk the New Jersey Comprehensi e Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts arc required to
reserve General Fund fund balance at the tiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a
required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent vears budget.
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NOTE 12: Equity Balance

2% Calculation of Excess Surplus
20] 0—11 Total General Fund Expenditures Per the CAFR

Decreased by:
On Behalf TPAF Pension and Social Security

Adjusted 2010-]! General Fund Expenditures

S 8.398.85 I

$ 7.915.707

2°h of Adjusted 2010-1] General Fund Expenditures

Enter Greater of Above or 5250.000
Increased b A llo\\ able Adj ustments

Maximum I. ‘nassigned Fund Balance

Section 2

SI 58,314

S 250.000
56.362

S 306.362

Total General Fund — Fund Balance 6-30-1 1

Decreased by:
Year-End Encumbrances
Legally Restricted Designated for Subsequent Years Expenditures
Other Restricted Reserved Fund Balances
Assigned - Designated for Subsequent Years Expenditures

$ 2.067.611

Total Unassigned Fund Balance $978,841

Restricted Fund Balance Excess Surplus $672,479

Section 3
Excess Surplus $672,479

Detail of Allowable Adjustments
Extraordinary Aid $47,128
Non-Public Transportation 9r2.34

Detail of Other Restricted Fund Balance
Maintenance Reser e
(apital Rcscre

$ 56,362

$502.00!

Reserved excess surplus represents a calculation under \ iSA. I 8A:7t hich
identife.s an amount of surplus under the. statute which must he rcstrict.e.d for use in the. next
succeedinc hudect. Decimated for suhseoucni :ears. reprewnts the :imount anpronriated n foe
20 i(ti2 hudet,

(22.924)
(357,133)
(502.00 1)

Q7±2)

S 402.000
100.001

L rcsincted is urpius flOl ccw ousR conmitted or reer\ ed for an other purpose.
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NOTE 13: Contingent Liabilities

The Board is involved in several claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the
opinion of the administration and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not
have a material adxerse effect of the financial position of the District.

NOTE 14: Economic Dependency

The District receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and stale
governments. A siniticant reduction in the le ci of support. if this were to occur. may have an
effect on the District’s programs and activities.

NOTE 15: Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of. damage to, and
destruction of assets: errors and omissions: injuries to emplo ecs: and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance — The District maintains commercial insurance
coverage for propert’;. liahilit student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of
insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report.

New .Iersev Unemployment Compensation rnsurance — The District elected to fund
its New Jersey Unemploment Compensation Insurance under the Beneflt Reimbursement
Method”. Under this plan. the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemploment
Trust Fund br benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State.
The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. The following is a summary of
District contributions. emplo cc contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and
the ending balance of the District’s expendable trust fund for the current and previous to years:

District Interest
Fiscal Year Contributions Earned Reimbursed Balance
2010-2011 $7,535 163 17,990 70,340
2009-2010 10.712 286 21.524 80.632
2008-2009 28,928 1.111 16.752 91.158

NOTE 16: Deferred Corn pensation

Ihe Board offers its employees a choice of the following debarred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 303(F). The plans. hich are
administered In the entities listed below. pernhits participants to deter a portion of their salar
until future years Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until
termination, retirement. death or unforeseeahle emergenc\ The plan administrators are as
tol lows:

franklin 1 c ipelton FroNt Sn aensa l3enefus
American Century Investment AXA Equitable
\ILI I t rL ft OtLLT \1 i \1 itt a



NOTE 17: Post-Retirement health Benefits

Henry hudson Regional School District provides post-employment dental to all retirees
and prescription drug coverage to those who retired prior to July 1. 2005. Henry 1-ludson
Regional School District pays 100% of the insurance cost for the retiree.

Henry Hudson Regional School District’s annual Other Post-Employment Benefit cost is
calculated based on the Annual Required Contribution. The actuarial cost method used to
determine the Plan’s funding requirements is the “Unit Credit” method. Under this method, an
actuarial accrued liability is determined as the present value of the earned benefits, which is
allocated to service before the current plan year. The Plan is currently unfunded. The unfunded
actuarial liability is amortized over thirty years. The following table shows the changes in henry
Hudson Regional School District’s annual Other-Post Employment Benefit cost for the year. the
amount actually contributed to the Plan and changes in their net Other Post-Employment Benefit
obligation plan:

Annual Required Contribution $ 130,361
Interest on Net Other Post-Employment Benefit
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution

__________

130,361
Annual Other Post-Employment Benefit Contributions Made

__________

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 1 33,305
Net OPEB, Beginning of Year 1,685,964

Net OPEB, End of Year

Henry Hudson Regional School District’s annual Other Post-Employment Benefit cost,
the percentage of annual Other Post Employment Benefit cost contributed to the Plan, and the net
Other Post Employment Benefit obligation (OPEB) for the year ending June 30, 2011 is as
follows:

Year Annual Percentage Net OPEB
Ended OPIfB Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/il $ 130,361 0% 1,816,325

Actuarial assumptions were used to value the post-retirement medical liabilities.
Actuarial assumptions were based on the actual experience of the covered group, to the extent
that creditable experience data was available, with an emphases on expected long-term future
trends rather than giving undue weight to recent past experience. The reasonableness of each
actuarial assumption was considered independently based on its own merits, its consistency with
each other assumption, and the combined impact of all assumptions.

Two economic assumptions used in the valuation are the discount rate and the health
care cost trend rates, The economic assumption is used to account for changes in the cost of
benefits over time and to discount future benefit payments for the time value of money.
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NOTE 17: Post-Retirement health Benefits (Continued)

The investment return assumption (discount rate) should be estimated long-term
investment yield on the investments that are expected to be used to finance the payments of
benefits. The investments expected to be used to finance the payments of benefits would be plan
assets for funded plans. assets of the employer for pay-as-you-go plans. or a proportionate
combination of the two for plans that are being partially funded, We assumed a discount rate of
5.0 percent for purposes of developing the liabilities and Annual Required Contribution of the
basis that the Plan would not be funded. We based dental and prescription drug claims on an
annual average claims cost of approximately $512 for single dental coverage and $2. 162 for
single prescription drug coverage. We assumed health care costs would increase annual at a rate
of 5°o.

Henry Hudson Regional School District currently has thirty-eight retired employees
receiving retirement benefits. The net Other Post-Employment Benefit obligation to Henry
Hudson Regional School District to provide benefits to the retirees for the year ended June 30,
2011 was S1,8l6325.

NOTE 18: Significant Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC 105, Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, which establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification as the sole source of
authoritative generally accepted accounting principles. Pursuant to the provisions of FASB ASC
105, the District has updated references to GAAP in its financial statements issued for the period
ended June 30, 2010. The adoption of FASB ASC 105 did not impact the District’s financial
position or results of operations.

In May 2009, the FASB updated ASC 855, Subsequent Events, which is effective for
reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. ASC 855 establishes general standards of
accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date, but before the
financial statements are issued, or are available to be issued. The District adopted the amended
sections of ASC 855 and it did not have an impact on the District’s financial statements. The
District evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after June 30, 2011 through November
30, 2011.
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HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 61.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Exhibit C-3

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

NOTE TO RSI

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Special
General Revenue

Fund Fund
Sources/Inflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary> “revenues” from the

budgetary comparison schedules $ 8,640.993 281.212

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant Accounting Budgetary Basis Differs from GAAP in that

Encumbrances are Recognized as Expenditures, and the Related
Revenue is Recognized (25,145)

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary
purposes. 114.069

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year. (57,293)

Total revenue as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. $ 8,697,769 256,067

Uses/Outflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total outflows’ from the

budgetary comparison schedule $ 8,398,851 281,212

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not

received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes. (25,145)

Total Expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues. S 8.398.851 256,067
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - F

N/A



PROPRIETARY FUNDS - G

N/A



FIDUCIARY FUND— H
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HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SChOOL DISTRICT

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Exhibit 11-2

FOR THE FISCAL VEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Additions
Local Source:

Contributions
Interest on Investments

Total Additions

Deductions
Scholarship Payments
Unemployment Claims

Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets. July 1

Scholarships

S 23.171

360
24.531

26. 538

26.538

(2,007)

39.766

S 37,759

Unemployment
Compensation

Insurance
Trust Fund

7.535

163
7.698

17,990
17,990

(10.292)

80,632

Totals

31.706

523
32,229

26.53$
17.990
44,528

(12,299)

120.398

Net Assets. June 30 70.340 108.099



HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SChOOL DISTRICT

STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
Exhibit 11-3

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1, 2010 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2011

Activities Account S 50,044 143,952 136,787 57,209



67.hENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SChOOL DISTRICT

PAYROLL AGENCY
Exhibit [1-4

SCHEDULE OF ChANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011

Assets

CashandCashEquivalents S 23,323 1,991004 1,965.082 51.245

Liabilities
Payroll Deductions. Withholdings
andAmountDueEmployees S 23.323 1,993,004 1,965,082 51,245
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Exhibit J-7 76.

HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN YEARS
(RATE PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE)

(UNAUDITED)

County
Local Regional Open

Year Ended School School Municipal County Space Total

Atlantic Highlands
2011 $ 0.720 0.613 0.683 0.343 0.019 2.378

2010 0.711 0.591 0.657 0.341 0.020 2.320

2009 0.687 0.582 0.622 0.350 0.021 2.262

2008 0.677 0.569 0.607 0.339 0.021 2.213

2007 0.654 0.546 0.582 0.358 0.010 2.150

2006 0.634 0.583 0.577 0.345 0.018 2.157

2005 0.613 0.583 0.567 0.336 0.029 2.128

2004 0.572 0.558 0.560 0.315 0.018 2.023

2003 1.005 1.079 1.043 0.613 0.037 3.777

2002 0.945 0.980 0.962 0.595 0.024 3.506

Highlands
2011 0.500 0.678 0.921 0.319 0.018 2.436

2010 0.562 0.785 1.068 0.381 0.022 2.818

2009 0.569 0.789 1.052 0.344 0.230 2.984

2008 0.594 0.756 0.974 0.357 0.022 2.703

2007 0.581 0.736 0.912 0.351 0.021 2.601

2006 0.570 0.685 0.907 0.337 0.018 2.517

2005 0.557 0.622 0.863 0.322 0.018 2.382

2004 0.512 0.617 0.815 0.284 0.017 2.245

2003 1.178 1.303 2.025 0.635 0.039 5,180

2002 1.171 1.068 1.679 0.575 0.023 4.516

Source: Abstract of Ratables



Exhibit J-8
HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO
(UNAUDITED)

Atlantic Highlands

2011 2002
Taxable % of Total Taxable % of Total

Assessed Rank District Net Assessed Rank District Net
Value (Optional) Assessed Value Value (Optional> Assessed Value

Elk Harbor View LLC $ 6,461500 1 N/A $ N/A 1 0%
Cove Shore Partners 6,189,900 2 N/A N/A 2 0%Taxpayer #1 5,004,600 3 N/A N/A 3 0%Taxpayer#2 3,371,700 4 N/A N/A 4 0%
McConnell Realty Co. 2,976,400 5 N/A N/A 5 0%Atlantic Pier Co. 2,555,400 6 N/A N/A 6 0%West Side Realty Co. 2,538,900 7 N/A N/A 7 0%Laurmin Assoc. 1,958,700 8 N/A N/A 8 0%Taxpayer #3 1,722,200 9 N/A N/A 9 0%
Verizon 1,664,015 10 N/A N/A 10 0%

Total $ 34,443,315 N/A $ N/A 0%

Highlands

2011 2002
Taxable % of Total Taxable % of Total

Assessed Rank District Net Assessed Rank District Net
Value (Optional) Assessed Value Value Qptional) Assessed Va’ue

Highlands Landing Corp. $ N/A 1 N/A $ N/A 1 0%Sandy Hook Developers LLC N/A 2 N/A N/A 2 0%Highlander Development Group N/A 3 N/A N/A 3 0%Bahrs Restaurant, Inc. N/A 4 N/A N/A 4 0%Shore Landing, LLC N/A 5 N/A N/A 5 0%470 Bayside Partners, LLC N/A 6 N/A N/A 6 0%
Baker’s Marina on the Bay, LLC N/A 7 N/A N/A 7 0%DanRob Property Assoc.. LLC N/A 8 N/A N/A 8 0%Taxpayer #1 N/A 9 N/A N/A 9 0%Navesink Capital Partners N/A 10 N/A N/A 10 0%

Total $ N/A N/A $ N/A 0%

N/A Not Available

Source; Municipal Tax As•.ess•or



Exhibit J-9 78.

HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Collected Within the Fiscal Year
Fiscal Year of the Levya Collections in

Ended Taxes Levied for Percentage Subsequent
June 30, the Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years

Atlantic Highlands
2002 $ 3,750,080 3,750,080 100.00%
2003 3,697,745 3,697,745 100.00%
2004 3,613,461 3,613,461 100.00%
2005 3,453,986 3,453,986 100.00%
2006 3,616,289 3,616,289 100.00%
2007 3,571,527 3,571,527 100.00%
2008 3,434,022 3,434,022 100.00%
2009 3,244,982 3,244,982 100.00%
2010 2,945,322 2,945,322 100.00%
2011 2,898,419 2,898,419 100.00%

Highlands
2002 $ 4,258,512 4,258,512 100.00%
2003 4,287,786 4,287,786 100.00%
2004 4,095,763 4,095,763 100.00%
2005 3,945,117 3,945,117 100.00%
2006 3,658,961 3,658,961 100.00%
2007 3,310,637 3,310,637 100.00%
2008 3,288,277 3,288,277 100.00%
2009 2,998,874 2,998,874 100.00%
2010 2,417,459 2,417,459 100.00%
2011 2,343,807 2,343,807 100.00%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)



E
xh

ib
it

J-
10

H
E

N
R

Y
H

U
D

SO
N

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
S

C
H

O
O

L
D

IS
T

R
IC

T

R
A

T
IO

S
O

F
O

U
T

ST
A

N
D

IN
G

D
E

B
T

B
Y

T
Y

PE

L
A

ST
T

E
N

FI
SC

A
L

Y
E

A
R

S
(U

N
A

U
D

IT
E

D
)

B
us

in
es

s-
T

yp
e

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l
A

ct
iv

iti
es

A
ct

iv
iti

es
B

on
d

G
en

er
al

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

s
A

nt
ic

ip
at

io
n

F
is

ca
l

Y
ea

r
O

bl
ig

at
io

n
of

C
ap

it
al

N
ot

es
C

ap
it

al
T

ot
al

P
er

g
jn

J
u

fl
e
3

0
B

on
ds

b
P

ar
ti

ci
pa

ti
on

L
ea

se
s

(B
A

N
s)

L
ea

se
s

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

ap
it

aa

20
02

$
-

15
4,

40
8

-
-

15
4,

40
8

15
.8

4
20

03
10

,3
40

,0
00

-
15

,5
86

-
-

10
,3

55
,5

86
1,

06
1.

13
20

04
10

.1
75

,0
00

-
8,

03
5

-
-

10
,1

83
,0

35
1,

04
9.

26
20

05
9,

92
5,

00
0

-
37

,1
96

-
-

9,
96

2,
19

6
1,

03
5.

25
20

06
9,

67
5,

00
0

-
15

,4
98

-
-

9,
69

0,
49

8
1,

00
9.

32
20

07
9,

40
0,

00
0

-
-

-
9.

40
0,

00
0

94
7.

29
20

08
9,

12
5,

00
0

-
-

-
9,

12
5,

00
0

92
4.

14
20

09
8,

82
5,

00
0

-
-

-
8,

82
5,

00
0

89
6.

39
20

10
8,

52
5,

00
0

-
-

-
8,

52
5,

00
0

N
/A

20
11

8,
20

0,
00

0
-

-
-

8,
20

0,
00

0
N

/A

N
ot

e:
D

et
ai

ls
re

ga
rd

in
g

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t’
s

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g

de
bt

ca
n

be
fo

un
d

in
th

e
N

ot
es

to
th

e
F

in
an

ci
al

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

a
S

ee
E

xh
ib

it
N

J
J-

14
fo

r
pe

rs
on

al
in

co
m

e
an

d
po

pu
la

ti
on

da
ta

.
T

he
se

ra
ti

os
ar

e
ca

lc
ua

te
d

us
in

g
pe

rs
on

al
in

co
m

e
an

d
po

pu
la

ti
on

fo
r

th
e

pr
io

r
ca

le
nd

ar
ye

ar
.

N
/A

N
ot

av
ai

la
bl

e
at

th
e

ti
m

e
of

au
di

t



Exhibit J-1 1
HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Net Percentage of

General General Actual Taxable

Fiscal Year Obligation Bonded Debt Value2 of Per

Ending June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property Capitab

2002 $ None None
2003 10,340,000 10,340,000 3.45% 1,059.53
2004 10,175,000 10,175,000 1.66% 1,048.43
2005 9,925,000 9,925,000 1.62% 1,031.38
2006 9,675,000 9,675,000 1.56% 1,007.71
2007 9,400,000 31,213,156 1.49% 947.29
2008 9,125,000 9,125,000 1.44% 924.14
2009 8,825,000 8,825,000 1.39% 896.39
2010 8,525,000 8,525,000 1.34% N/A
2011 8,200,000 8,200,000 1.30% N/A

Note: Details regarding the District’s outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

a See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data.
b Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-14,

N/A Not available at the time of audit.
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Exhibit J-1 4 83.

HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

County Unemployment
Year Population Per Capita Rate

Atlantic Highlands
2001 4,688 43,863 2.6%
2002 4.690 43,387 3.8%
2003 4,686 43,634 3.7%
2004 4,662 46,545 3.1%
2005 4,625 48,072 5.8%
2006 4,614 52,499 5,9%
2007 4,613 55,826 5.3%
2008 4,602 57,353 6.9%
2009 4,594 54,771 11.1%
2010 4,494 N/A 11,3%

Highlands
2001 5,025 43,863 5.5%
2002 5,058 43,387 7.9%
2003 5,073 43,634 7.9%
2004 5,043 46,545 6.7%
2005 4,998 48,072 5.8%
2006 4,987 52,499 5.9%
2007 5,310 55,826 5.4%
2008 5,272 57,353 6.9%
2009 5,251 54,771 11.2%
2010 5,005 N/A 11.4%



Exhibit J-1 5
HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO
(UNAUDITED)

BOROUGH OF ATLANTIC HIGHLANDS

2011 2002
Percentage of Percentage of

Total Total
Rank Municipal Rank Municipal

Employer Employees (Optional) Employment Employees (Optional) Employment

UNAVAILABLE 1 1
2 2
3 3
4 4
5 5
6 6
7 7
8 8
9 9
10 10

Total

BOROUGH OF HIGHLANDS

2011 2002
Percentage of Percentage of

Total Total
Rank Municipal Rank Municipal

Employer Employees (Optional) Employment Employees (Optional) Employment

UNAVAILABLE 1 1
2 2
3 3
4 4

5 5
6 6
7 7
8 8
9 9
10 10

Totai

Information not available at time of CAFR preparation
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Exhibit J-1 9
HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED
MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES

11 -000-261 -xxx

Henry Hudson
*School Facilities Regional

Project # (5) High School

2002 N/A $ 117,982
2003 N/A 62,953
2004 N/A 41,260
2005 N/A 50,538
2006 N/A 94,886
2007 N/A 102,681
2008 N/A 126,996
2009 N/A 187,685
2010 N/A 108,097
2011 N/A 89,400

School facilities as defined under EFCFA.
(N.JA.C. 6A:26-1 .2 and N.JA.C. 6A:26-1 3)

Source: District records



Exhibit J-20
S9.

HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE

June 30, 2011
(UNAUDITED)

Coverage Deductible
Garden State Group:

Property $ 24,085,893 $ 1,000
Extra 250,000

Inland Marine 481,634 250
Comprehensive General Liability Occurrence 1,000,000

Aggregate 2,000,000
Employee Benefits Liability Occurrence 1,000,000 1,000

Aggregate 2,000,000
Automobile 1,000,000 350

Uninsured Motorist 1,000,000
Hired & Non-Owned 1,000,000

Excess Liability 10,000,000
Board Legal Liability Occurrence 1,000,000 5,000

Annual Aggregate 1,000,000
Boiler & Machinery Extra 100,000 1,000
Workers Compensation Professional 5,031,594

Nonprofessional 208,726

Performance Bonds:
Treasurer 200,000
Board Secretary/Business Administrator 100,000
Honesty Blanket Bond 22,500

Source: District records
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CERTIFIED PtBLlC ACCOUiVTAISTS

ARMOUR S. HULSART. C.P.A., R.M.A.. P.S.A. (1959’1992)
2807 Hur!ey Pond Road Suite 100

ROBERT A. HULSART. C.P.A.. R.M.A.. P.S.A.
S 0 Box 1409

ROBERTA. HULSART. JR.,C.P.A., P.S.A.
e-rna Wet. New Jersey 07719-t409

rah@mormouth.com (7321 681.4990
RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT. JR., C.P.A., P.S.A.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL. OVER FINANCIAL.

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASEI) ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GO VERAMEWTA UDITING STANDARDS

K-I

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Henry Hudson Regional School District
County of Monmouth
Highlands. New Jerse

We have audited the general—purpose flnancial statements of the Board of Education of the I lenrv
Hudson Regional School District, in the Count of Moiirnouth. State ofNe Jersey. as of and for the
fiscal ear ended June 30. 2011. and have issued our report thereon dated No ember 30. 2011. We
conducted our audit in accordance ith auditing standards generally accepted in the I. nited States of
America: the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government .4udiiiiig .S’tandards.
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States: and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Division of Finance. Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Henry Hudson Regional Board of
Education’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the F-Ienry Hudson Regional Board of Education’s internal control over
linancial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effCctiveness of the Henry Hudson
Regional Board of [-ducat ion’s internal control over financial reportinn.

A r/eticlcitci iii Infernal control e\ists hen the design or operation of a control does not allo
manacemeni or emplo ees. in the normal course of pcrlfirniintr their assivned function, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material iteakiie.vt is a deticenc, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable posstbil itv that a material misstatement
of the District’s financial statements will not he pre\ ented. or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our c tnsdera1 on of nlernal control ot Cr tnanc in! reportine \\ as fbi the 1tmted utose
described in the first paracraph of this section and ouid not necessarily identi fi all deficiencies in
iii tern tI ontt 01 th It m iJ ii h NlgnIfia v detiL iL nu r natel in I ‘s caI \‘ J id not ident Is en
defic.ienc.ies in internal c ntt.o1 ove•r h.nancial re.portine that we c.onside.r to he material weaknesses. as
defined above.



91.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about hether the Henry 1-ludson Regional Board of

Educations eneral-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. we perftwmed tests of

its compliance ih certain pros isions of laws. regulations. contracts and grant agreements.

noncompliance ith hich could have a direct and material effect on the determination of general—

purpose financial statement amounts. Howe er. proiding an opinion on compliance ith those

pro isions as not an objective of our audit and. accordingl), we do not express such an opinion. The

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be

reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of

Finance, Department of Education. State of New Jersey.

This report is intended sole[v for the information and use of the audit committee. management.

the Henry Hudson Regional Board of Education. the Ne Jersey State Department of Education and

other state and federal awarding agencies and pass—through entities and is not intended to be and should

not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Robert A. Ilulsart -________

Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 322
Robert A. Hulsart and Company

Noveni her 30. 2011
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

ARMOUR S. HULSART. C.P.A.. R.M,A,, P.S.A. (1859-1992) 2807 Hurley Pond Road Suite 100
ROBERT A. HULSART, C.P.A.. R.M.A.. P.S.A. P 1409
ROBERT A. HULSART. JR..C.P.A.. P.S.A. e-rnat WaP, New Jersey 07719-1409

rah@monmouth corn 732) 681-4990

RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT, JR.. C.P.A.. P.S.A.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WiTH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH 0MB CIRCULAR A-133 AND

NEW JERSEY 0MB CIRCULAR 04-04

K-2

I lonorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Henry Hudson Regional School District

County of Monmouth
Highlands. Ne Jersey

Coni pliance

We have audited the compliance of the Board of Education of the Henry Hudson Regional

School District, in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, with the types of compliance

requirements described in the ( 5 OffI of .llanagemen/ and Budge! (O.iBi (‘hen/ar -1—133

( onipliance Supplenieni and the Yew .Jerse’i’ Stale .1i/Grani ( ‘oinp/iance Supplement that are applicable

to each of its major state programs fiar the fiscal year ended .June 30. 2011 . Henry Hudson Regional

Board of Education’s major state programs are identified iii the summary of auditor’s results section of

the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,

regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major state programs is the responsibility of the

Henry Hudson Regional Board of F.ducation’s management. Our responsibilit is to express an opinion

on the l-lenrv Hudson Regional Board of Education’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance ith auditing standards generall accepted

in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States: the audit requirements as

prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department ol’ Education, State of New Jerse : 0MB Circular A—

i udm I ‘niic I w I j , / i na. n ito] ‘on I’! , 0, ,,un’ 11101/s nd is. ‘,s. ()\l B

Circular 04-04. .Sincz/e .udii Polici Ide Rw-mpwiils of Federal Grants. Slate Grani.v and State .-lid. IThose

standards, O\i B Circular :\— 133 and Ness .Iersev OMB’s Circular 04—(4. require that e plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance v ith the types of

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state

program occurred, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Henry Hudson

Reuional Board of Education’s compliance w ith those requirements and perfiarming such other

t)rocedures as e- consjdered necessar in the circumstances, Vs e he! ic e that our audit pros ides a
I

-
I 1 1 I r _IL 1 i q )i I

Regional Board or Education’s compliance with those requ.irement.s.
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In our opinion, the Board of Education of the Henry Hudson Regional School District, in the

Count of Monmouth. State ofNe Jersey. complied, in all nmterial respects. v ith the requirements

referred to above that are applicable to each of its major state programs for the ear ended June 30. 2011

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Board of Education of the Henry Hudson Regional School District is

responsible for establishing and maintaining effecti e internal control over compliance w ith requirements

of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to state programs. In planning and performing our

audit. considered the l-Ienrv 1-ILidson Regional Board of Education’s internal control over compliance

with requirements that could ha e a direct and material effect on a major state program in order to

determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for

the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 1Ienr hudson Regional Board of

Education’s internal control over compliance.

A dejiciencv ii internal control over coinpliaiice exists when the design or operation of a control

over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perftwming their

assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance

requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over

compliance is a deficienc . or combination of deficiencies. in internal control oer compliance such that

there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a txpe of compliance requirement ola

state program w ill not he prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in

the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control

that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We (lid not identify an deficiencies in

internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,

the Henry Hudson Regional Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education and

other federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should

not he used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Robert A. 1-lu Isart
Licensed Public School Accountant
No.322
Robert A. Flu Isart and Conipan

No ember 50. 2011
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
K-5

HENRY HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1: General

The accompanying schedules of financial assistance present the activit of all federal and

state financial assistance programs of the Board of Education. Henry Hudson School District.

The Board of Education is defined in Note 1(A) to the Boards general-purpose financial

statements. All federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as

well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is

included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2: Basis of Acconntin

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are

presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting with the exception of programs

recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting and

than recorded in the special revenue fund which are presented using the budgetary basis of

accounting. These bases of accounting are described in the Note 1(C) to the Boards general-

purpose financial statements.

NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements

The general-purpose financial statements present the general fund and special revenue

fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for

the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance—related legal compliance in

which certain revenue is permitted b law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year.
whereas for GAAP reporting. revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when

expenditures ha\e been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual
basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to NJSA. l8A;22-442, For GAAP purposes that

payment is not recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and

recording of the last state aid payment in the subsequent \ear, The special revenue fund is

presented in the accompan\ lug schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which

recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues. whereas the
(AAP basis does not. The special re enue fund also recognizes the last state aid payment in the
current budget year. consistent with :\ISrI. I SA:22-42.

Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board’s general purpose

financial statements on a GAAP basis as presented below:
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NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements

Special
Revenue Food

General Fund Fund Service Total
State Assistance
Actual Amounts (Budgetary)
Revenues” from the Schedule
of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance $ l.03).807 34.952 L077 1.075.836

Difference — Budget to GAAP
Grant Accounting Budgetary

Basis Differs from GAAP
in that Encumbrances are
Recognized as Expenditures
and the Related Revenue
is Recognized

On Behalf Payments
Recognized for GAAP
Statements hut Not
Included in the Schedule
of Expend itures of State
Financial Assistance 228.674 228.674

The Last State Aid Payment
Is Recognized as Revenue
for Budgetary Purposes.
and Differs from (3AAP
Which does not Recognize
This Revenue Until the
Subsequent Year When the
State Recognizes the Related
Expense (GASB 33) 5&776 56.766

total State Re enue as Reported
on the Statenieni of Revenues.
Expenditures and Changes in
Fund BilanLL’. I 34 92 I 0 I l 26



NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements (Continued)

Special
Revenue Food

General Fund Fund Service Total

Federal Assistance
Actual Amounts (Budgetary)
Revenues” from the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal
Awards $5,732 219,064 56,991 281,787

Difference — Budget to “GAAP”
Grant Accounting Budgetary
Basis Differs from GAAP in that
Encumbrances are Recognized as
Expenditures. and the Related
Revenue is Recognized 25145)

_______

(25,145)

Total Federal Revenue as
Reported on the Statement
of Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund
Balances 5,732 193.919 56,991 256,642

NOTE 4: Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the
related federal and state financial reports.

NOTE 5: Other

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent
current year value received and current year distributions respectively. The amount reported as
TPAF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the state of behalf of the District for
the year ended June 30, 201 1. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the amount
reimbursed by the state for the ernployers share of social security contributions for IPAF
memhe.rs for the year ende.d June. 30, 201 1.



HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
K-6

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

Part I — Summary of4uditars RL’suIt.s

Financial Statement Section Unqualified

(A T pe of auditors report issued:

(B) Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? Yes x No

2) Were reportable conditions(s) identified that were

not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes x No

(C) Noncompliance material to general purpose financial

statements noted? Yes \ i\J0
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HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011

Part 1 - Suinmitry ofAuditor’s Results (Coiitinued

State Awards Section

(J) Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs:

(K) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

(L) Type of auditors report on compliance for major programs:

(M) Internal control over compliance:

(I) Material Weakness(es) identified?

(2) Were reportable condition(s) identified that were

not considered to material weaknesses?

(N) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with N.J. OMB’s Circular 04-04?

(0) Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s)

11-495-034-5120-089

________________________________

11-495-034-5120-085

_________________________________

1 1-495-034-5120-002

K-6

S300.000

x Yes No

Unqualified

Yes x No

Yes x No

Yes x No

Name of State Program

Special Education Aid

Adjustment Aid

TPAF Social Security (Reimbursed)



HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
101.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS
K-6

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance

related to the general purpose financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with

Chapter 5. I 8 of Government Auditing Standards.

Finding: None

Criteria or specific requirement: N/A

Condition: N/A

Questioned Costs: N/A

Context: N/A

Effect: N/A

Recommendation: N/A



HENRY HUDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 102.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS
K-6

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ETDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 3 - Schedule of Federal and State A ward Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance

including questioned costs. related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by 0MB

Circular A- 133 and New Jersey OMWs Circular 04-04.

FEDERAL AWARDS
[:indin. N/A

Federal program information: N/A

Criteria or specific requirement: N/A

Condition: N/A

Ouestioned Costs: N/A

Context: N/A

Effect: N/A

Recommendation: N/A

Managements response: N/A

STATE AWARDS
Finding: None

Stare program information: N/A

Criteria or specific requirement: N/A

Condition: N/A

Qgieççsts: N/A

Context: N/A

Effect: N/A

Recommendation: N/A



Prior Audit Findings:

N/A

HENRY huDSON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
K-7

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011


